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PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
Thirty South Seventeenth Street 
Philadelphia PA 19103-4094 
Telephone (2151 575 5000 

Report of independent Accountants 

To the Board of Directors and Stockholder of 
Kentucky-American Water Company 

In our opinion, the accompanying balance sheet and the related statements of income and 

retained earnings, of cash flows, of capitalization and of common stockholder's equity, present 

fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Kentucky-American Water Company (a 

wholly-owned subsidiary of American Water Works Company, Inc.) at December 31, 1999 

and 1998, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in 

conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. These financial 

statements are the responsibility of the Company's management; our responsibility is to 

express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits 

of these statements in accordance with auditing standards generaily accepted in the United 

States which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 

whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes 

examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 

statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 

management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our 

audits provide a reasonable basis for the opinion expressed above. 

. . 
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 
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KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
Balance Sheet 

(Dollars in thousands) 
Assets 

Property, plant and equipment 
Utility plant - at original cost less accumulated depreciation 
Utility piant acquisition adjustments, net 

current assets 
Cash and a s h  equivalents 
Customer accounts receivable 
Allowance for unwllectible accounts 
Unbilied revenues 
Miscelianeous receivables 
Matedais and supplies 
Mher 

Regulatory and other long-term assets 
Regulatory asset - inwme taxes rewverabie through rates 
Deferred programmed maintenance 
Preliminary sljivey and investigation 
Debt and preferred stock expense 
Other 

Capitalization end Liabilities 
Capitalization 

Common stock 
Paid in capitai 
Retained earnings 

Total wmmon stockhoidefs equity 

Preferred stock without mandatory redemption requirements 
Prefemd stock with mandatory redemption requirements 
Long-term debt 

Total capitalization 

Current liabilitles 
Bank debt-pending issuance of securities 
Current portion of long-1erm debl 
Accounts payable 
Taxes accrued 
interest accrued 
Wages and benefits accrued 
Tax collection payable 
Other 

Regulatory and other long-term liabilities 
Customer advances for construction 
Deferred income taxes 
Deferred investment tax credits 
Accrued pension expense 
Accrued postretirement beneMs expense 
Other 

Contributions in aid of construction 

Commitments and contingencies 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 
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KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
Statement of lncome 
(Dollars in thousands) 

Operating revenues 

Operating expenses 
Operation and maintenance 
Depreciation and amortization 
Taxes on operating income 

General 
State income 
Federal income 

Utility operating income 

Other income 
Allowance for other funds used during construction 
Miscellaneous other income 

Other deductions 
Miscellaneous other deductions 
Taxes on other income and deductions 

State income 
Federal income 

Income before interest charges 

Interest charges 
lnterest on long-term debt 
Amortization of debt expense 
lnterest on bank debt 

I Other interest 
Allowance for borrowed funds used during construction 

..< 

Net income 

Statement of  Retained Earnings 

Retained earnings at beginning of year 
Net income 

Dividends 
Preferred stock 
Common stock 

Retained earnings at end of year 

For the Years Ended 
1999 - 1998 - 

$ 39,104 $ 37,744 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
Statement of Cash Flows 

(Dollars in thousands) 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Net income 
Adjustments 

Depreciation and amortization 
Amortization, other 
Provision for deferred income taxes 
Amortization of deferred investment tax credits 
Provision for losses on accounts receivable 
Deferred programmed maintenance 
Allowance for other funds used during construction 
Pension accrual in excess of funding 
Other, net 
Changes in current assets and liabilities 

Accounts receivable 
Unbilied revenues 
Other current assets 
Accounts payable 
Taxes accrued 
Other current liabilities 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Constmction expenditures 
Allowance for other funds used during construction 
Cost of removal, net of salvage 
Water system acquisition 

Net cash used in investing activities 

Cash fiows from financing activities 
Proceeds from sale of common stock 
Proceeds from long-term debt issuance 
Repayment of long-term debt 
Net repayment under line-of-credit agreement 
Dividends paid 
Customer advances and contributions, net of refunds 
Debt issuance cost 
Redemption of preferred stock 

Net cash provided by financing activities 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

Cash paid during the year for: 
Interest, net of capitalized amount 

For the Years Ended 
1994 1998 

Income taxes $ 2,996 $ 3,086 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
Statement of Capitalization 

(Dollars in thousands) 

Call Price December 31, 

PeLshwZ Is@ 1P9H 

Common Stockholder's Equity 
Common stock - no par value, authorized 2,000,000 shares, issued 

and outstanding 1,567,391 shares in 1999 and 1998, 
respectively 

Paid-in capital 
Retained earnings 

Preferred Stocks - $100 par value, authorized 25,000 shares 
Without mandatory redemption requirements 

Cumulative preferred stock 
5.75% series, 4.700 shares 
5.5% series, 5,000 shares 
5% series, 6.000 shares 

With mandatory redemption requirements 
Cumulative preferred stock 80 and 160 shares issued and outstanding 
4.5% series, 80 and 160 shares outstanding in 1999 and 1998 

respectively 
7.9% series, 9,600 and 10,000 shares issued and outstanding 

in 1999 and 1998, respectively 
8.47% series. 45.000 shares issued and outstanding 

Long-Term Debt 
General mortgage bonds. 

9.83% series due 2000 
8.36% series due 2001 
7.21% series due 2002 
6.79% series due 2005 
9.37% series due 2019 
6.96% series due 2023 
7.15% series due 2027 
6.99% series due 2028 

Less: Current portion of long-term debt 

Long-term debt net of current maturities 

Total capffalization 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Balance at December 31,1997 

KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
Statement of Common Stockholder's Equity 

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts) 

Common 

Common Stock Paid-in Retained Stockholder's 

S h a E s D a r v a l u e -  !3&!itY 

Net income 

Sale of common stock 

Dividends 

Preferred stock 

Common stock, $2.99 per share 

Balance at December 31,1998 

Net income 

Dividends 

Preferred stock 

Common stock, $3.29 per share 

Balance at December 31,1999 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 

Notes to Financial Statements 
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts) 

Note 1 .- Organization and Operation 

Kentucky-American Water Company (the Company) provides water service to 
approximately 96,000 customers and wastewater service to approximately 80 customers. These 
services are provided in 7 communities located in 7 counties in the state of Kentucky. As a public 
utility operating in Kentucky, the Company operates under rules and regulations prescribed by 
the Kentucky Public Service Commission (the Commission). The Company is a wholly-owned 
subsidiary of American Water Works Company, Inc. (American). 

~ o t e  2 - Significant Accounting Policies 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date 
of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. 
Actual results could differ from these estimates. 

Regulation 

The Company has incurred various costs and received various credits which have been 
reflected as regulatory assets and liabilities on its balance sheet. Accounting for such costs and 
credits as regulatory assets and liabilities is in accordance with Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards No. 71, "Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation" 
(SFAS No. 71). This statement sets forth the application of generally accepted accounting 
principles for companies whose rates are established by or are subject to approval by an 
independent third-party regulator. Under SFAS No. 71, regulated companies defer costs and 
credits on the balance sheet as regulatory assets and liabilities when it is probable that those costs - - 
and credits will be recognized in the rate setting process in a period different from the period in 
which they would have been reflected in income by an unregulated Company. These deferred - - - 
regulatory assets and liabilities are then reflected in the income statement in the period in which 
the same amounts are reflected in the rates charged for service. 

Properfy, Plant and Equipment 

. Additions to utility plant and replacements of retirement units of property are capitalized. 
Costs include material, direct labor and such indirect items as engineering and supervision, 
payroll taxes and benefits, transportation and an allowance for funds used during construction. 
Repairs, maintenance and minor replacements of property are charged to current operations. The 
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KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 

Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts) 

cost of property units retired in the ordinary course of business plus removal cost (net of salvage) 
is charged to accumulated depreciation. The cost of property, plant and equipment is depreciated 
using the strzight line method. The depreciation rates, based on the average balance of 
depreciable property, were 2.54% in 1999 and 2.50% in 1998. 

In accordance with the Commission's regulations, depreciation on contributed facilities is 
charged to contributions in aid of construction. Such depreciation amounted to $542 in 1999 and 
$488 in 1998. 

Utility plant acquisition adjustments include the difference between the purchase price of 
utility plant and its original cost (less accumulated depreciation) when first devoted to public 
service. Commission approved utility plant acquisition adjustments have been amortized to 
income over 10 years. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Substantially all of the Company's cash is invested in interest bearing accounts. The 
Company considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when 
purchased to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents held at December 3 1, 1999 were $0 and 1998 
were $996. 

Materials and Supplies 

Materials and supplies are stated at average cost. 

Regulatory and Other Long-Term Assets 

The Company has recorded a regulatory asset for the additional revenues expected to be 
realized as the tax effects of temporary differences previously flowed through to customers 
reverse. These temporary differences are primarily related to the difference between book and tax 
depreciation on property placed in service before the adoption by the Commission of full 
normalization for rate making purposes. The regulatory assets for income taxes recoverable 
through rates is net of the reduction expected in future revenues as deferred taxes previously 
provided, attributable to the difference between the state and federal income tax rates under prior 
law and the current statutory rates, teverse over the average remaining service lives of the related 
assets. 

Programmed maintenance costs are deferred and amortized to current operations on a 
straight-line basis over a period ranging between 5 and 15 years, as authorized by the 
Commission in their determination of rates charged for service. 

Expense of rate proceedings is deferred and amortized on a straight-line basis over two 
years as authorized. by the Commission in their determination of rates charged for service. 
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KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 

Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts) 

Preliminary survey and investigation charges generally relate to future construction 
projects. Management believes that these costs will ultimately be recovered through rates. 

Debt expense is amortized on a straight-line basis over the lives of the respective issues. 
Call premiums on the redemption of long-term debt, as well as unamortized debt expense, are 
deferred and amortized to the extent they will be recovered through future service rates. 
Expenses of preferred stock issues without sinking fund provisions are amortized over 30 years 
from the date of issue; expenses of issues with sinking fund provisions are charged to operations 
as shares are retired. 

Other Current Liabilities 

Other current liabilities at December 3 1, 1999 and 1998 include payables to banks of $634 
and $146, respectively which represent checks issued but not presented to the banks for payment, 
net of the related bank balance. 

Advances and Contrihu/ions in Aid of Construction 

The Company may receive advances and contributions to fimd construction necessary to 
extend service to new areas. As determined by the Commission, advances for construction are 
refundable for limited periods of time as new customers begin to receive service. Amounts which 
are no longer refundable are reclassified to contributions in aid of construction. 

Utility plant funded by contributions is excluded from rate base and is not depreciated for 
rate-making purposes. Generally, advances and contributions received during the period of 
January 1,1987 through June 12,1996 have been included in taxable income and the related 
property is depreciable for tax purposes. As a result of a tax law change, advances and 
contributions received subsequent to June 12, 1996 are excluded from taxable income. 

Recognition of Relwtues 

Water service revenues for financial reporting purposes include amounts billed to 
customers on a cycle basis and unbilled amounts based on estimated usage from the date of the 
latest meter reading to the end of the accounting period. 

Income Taxes 

The Company, American and affiliates participate in a consolidated federal income tax return. - .  

Federal income tax expense for financial reporting purposes is provided on a separate return basis, 
exce~t  that the federal income tax rate applicable to the consolidated group is applied to separate - ~. - - 

company taxable income and the benefit of net operating losses, if any, is recognized currently. 
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KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 

Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts) 

Certain income and expense items are accounted for in different time periods for financial 
reporting than for income tax reporting purposes. Deferred income taxes have been provided on the 
difference between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and the amounts at which they are carried in 
the fmancial statements. These deferred income taxes are based on the enacted tax rates anticipated 
to be in effect when such temporary differences are expected to reverse. Regulato~y assets and 
liabilities are recognized for the effect on revenues expected to be realized as the tax effects of 
temporary differences previously flowed through to customers reverse. 

Investment tax credits have been deferred and are being amortized to income over the average 
estimated service lives of the related assets. 

Allowance for Funds Used During Construction (AFUDC) 

AFUDC is a noncash adjustment to income with a corresponding charge to utility plant 
which represents the cost of borrowed funds and a return on equity funds devoted to plant under 
construction. AFUDC is recorded to the extent permitted by the Commission. 

Environmental Costs 

Environmental expenditures that relate to current operations or provide a future benefit are 
expensed or capitalized, as appropriate. Remediation costs that relate to an existing condition 
caused by past operations are accrued when it is probable that these costs will be incurred and can 
be reasonably estimated. There were no remediation costs accrued at December 3 1, 1999 or 1998. 

Asset Impairment 

Long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangible assets held and used by the Company 
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying amount of the assets, on a separate entity basis, may not be recoverable. If the sum of 
the future cash flows expected to result from the use of the assets and their eventual disposition is 
less than the carrying amount of the assets, an impairment loss is recognized. Measurement of an 
impairment loss is based on the fair value of the assets. A regulatory asset is charged to earnings 
if and when future recovery in rates of that asset is no longer probable. 

Reclassifications 

Certain reclassifications have been made to conform previously reported data to the current 
presentation. 
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KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 

Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts) 

Note 3 - Utility Plant 

The components of utility plant at December 3 1 are as follows: 

Water plant 
Sources of supply 
Treatment and pumping 
Transmission and distribution 

. Services, meters, and fire hydrants 
General structures and equipment 

Construction work in progress 

Less - accumulated depreciation 

Note 4 - Preferred Stocks 

Preferred stock agreements have annual siqking fund payments of $48 in 2000 and $40 in 
2001 through 2004. The sinking fund payments on the 4.5% series of $8 is mandatory. The 7.9% 
series sinking fund payment of $40 is at the option of the Company. 

Preferred stock agreements contain provisions for redemption at various prices on thirty 
days notice at the Company's discretion, except for the 8.47% series which is not callable prior to 
December 1,2001. 

In the event of voluntary liquidation of the Company, the 5.5% series is redeemable at 
$100.50 per share: the other issues are redeemable at $100 per share. 

In the event of involuntary liquidation of the Company, or government acquisition, all 
classes of preferred stocks are redeemable at $100 per share. All of the outstanding shares of the 
8.47% series shall be redeemed on December 1,2036 at $100 per share. 

Note 5 - Long-Term Debt 

Maturities of long-term debt will amount to $4,000 in 2000, $13,000 in 2001, $13,000 in 
2002 and zero in 2003 and 2004. 

The general mortgage bond indentures contain clauses restricting the declaration of 
common stock dividends and other distributions on capital stock if common stockholder's equity 
falls below a specified amount. There were no restrictions at December 3 1, 1999. 
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KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 

Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
(Dollars i n  thousands, except per share amounts) 

The general mortgage bonds are issuable in series. No bonds senior to the general 
mortgage bonds may be issued so long as general mortgage bonds are outstanding. The amount 
of bonds authorized is unlimited as long as long-term debt does not exceed 65% of capitalization. 
Long-term debt is secured by utility plant. 

Note 6 - Compensating Balances and Bank Debt 

At December 3 1, 1999 the Company maintained a bank line of credit of $13,840. The total 
of the unused line of credit at December 31, 1999 was $8,124. The Company has historically 
financed short-term cash requirements by borrowings from banks which are repaid with the 
proceeds of long-term financings. Borrowings under this line of credit are payable on demand 
and bear interest at variable rates. The agreement with the bank has no compensating balance 
requirement. 

The maximum amount of short-term bank borrowings outstanding during 1999 was 
$5,716, and the average amount outstanding during the year was $367. The weighted average 
annual interest rate on these borrowings during 1999 was 6.7%, and the interest rate at 
December 3 1, 1999 was 6.25%. 

Note 7 - Financings 

During 1998 the Company completed the following financings: 

Proceeds issue 

6/17/98 $3,000 General mortgage bonds, 6.99% series due 6/1/28 
6/17/98 $6,000 General mortgage bonds, 6.99% series due 6/1/28 
611 7/98 $6,000 Common stock, 170,309 shares, no par value 

The general mortgage bonds were sold to institutional investors at a price equal to the 
principal amount. The common stock was issued to American. 

Exhibit 28
Page 14 of 88



KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 

Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts) 

Note 8 - General Taxes 

Components of general tax expense for the years presented in the statement of income are 
as follows: 

Gross receipts and franchise 
Property and capital stock 
Payroll 

Note 9 -Income Taxes 

Components of income tax expense for the years presented in the statement of income are 
as follows: 

State income taxes: 
Current 
Deferred 

Non-current 

Federal income taxes: 
Current 
Deferred 

Current 
Non-current 

Amortization of deferred investment tax credits 

Exhibit 28
Page 15 of 88



KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 

Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts) 

A reconciliation of income tax expense at the statutory federal income tax rate to the actual 
income tax expense is as follows: 

Income tax at statutory rate $4,149 $ 3,984 
Increases (decreases) resulting from 

State taxes, net of federal income taxes 646 622 
Flow through differences 44 31 
Amortization of investment tax credits (85) (85) 
Other, net (34) (26) 

Actual income tax expense $4,720 $4,526 

The following table provides the components of the net deferred tax liability at 
December 3 1 : 

Deferred tax assets: 
Advances and contributions 
Deferred investment credits 
Other 

$ 14,523 $ 13,139 
. .: 

Deferred tax liabilities: 
?2 

Utility plant, principally due to depreciation differences 34,686 31,697 
. * Income taxes recoverable through rates 1,704 1,567 
.. other 1,727 1,583 

Net deferred tax liabilities $23,594 $ 21,708 

No valuation allowances were required on deferred tax assets at December 3 1, 1999 and 
1998. 

Note 10 - Rate Matters 

As necessary, the Company applies to the Commission for changes in the rates charged for 
service. The rate increase request is based on the level of operating expenses and capital costs that 
are expected to be in effect when the rates become effective. The revenues requested are based on 
forcasted sales, operating expenses and investments for the test year selected by the Company. 
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KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 

Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts) 

Note 11 - Employee Benefit Plans 

Employees' Stock Ownership Plan 

The Company participates in an Employees' Stock Ownership Plan which provides for 
beneficial ownership of American common stock by all employees of American and its 
subsidiaries who are not represented by a bargaining unit. Each participating employee can elect 
to contribute an amount that does not exceed 2% of his or her wages for the preceding year. In 
addition to the employee's participation, the Company makes a contribution equivalent to 112 of 
1% of each participant's qualified compensation for the preceding year and matches 100% of the 
contribution by each participant. The Company expensed contributions of $54 in 1999 and $56 
for 1998 that it made to the plan. The trustee of the plan may purchase shares of American 
common stock from American at the prevailing market price, on the open market, or from a 
qualified stockholder. 

Savings Plan for Employees 

The Company participates in a 401(lc) Savings Plan for Employees sponsored by American. 
All Associates can make contributions that are invested at the direction of the employee in one or 
more funds including a fund consisting entirely of American common stock. During 1999 and 
1998, the Company matched 50% of the first 4% of each employee's wages contributed to the 
plan. The Company expensed matching contributions to the plan totaling $82 for 1999 and $84 
for 1998. All of the Company's matching contributions are invested in the fund of American 
common stock. The trustee of the plan may purchase shares of American common stock from 
American at the prevailing market price from American, on the open market, or in a private 
transaction. 

Note 12 - Postretirement and Postemployment Benefits 

Pension Benefits 

The Company participates in a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan covering 
substantialIy a11 employees of American and its subsidiaries. Benefits under the plan are based on 
the employee's years of service and average annual compensation for those 60 consecutive 
months of employment which yield the highest average. Pension cost of the Company is based 
on an allocation from American of the total cost related to the plan. Information regarding 
accumulated and projected benefit obligations is not prepared at the subsidiary level. The 
Company's policy is to contribute at least the minimum amount required under the Employee 
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974. The Company made no contributions to the plan in 
1999 or 1998. The Company accrued pension costs of $217 in 1999 and $199 in 1998. 
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KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 

Notes toFinancial Statements (continued) 
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts) 

Poshetirement Benefits Other Than Pensions 

The Company participates in an American plan that provides certain life insurance benefits 
for retired employees and certain health care benefits for retired employees and their dependents. 
Substantially all employees may become eligible for these benefits if they reach retirement age 
while still working for the Company. Retirees and their dependents under age 65 can elect either 
a comprehensive medical plan under which covered expenses are paid at 80% after an annual 
deductible has been satisfied or, a managed care plan that requires copayments. Employees who 
elect to retire prior to attaining age 65 are required to make contributions toward their medical 
coverage until attaining age 65. Retirees and their dependents age 65 and over are covered by a 
Medicare supplement plan. Costs to the Company for postretirement benefits other than pensions 
are based on an allocation from American of the total cost related to the plan. Information 
regarding accumulated and projected benefit obligations is not prepared at the subsidiary level. 
The Com~anv made contributions to tmst funds established for these postretirement benefits of * - 
$578 in 1999 and $478 in 1998. The Company's policy is to fund benefits costs 
accrued. 

Note 13 - Related Party Transactions 

American Water Works Service Company, Inc. (Service Company), an affiliate, provides 
certain management services to the Company (administration, accounting, data processing, 
engineering, etc.) and other operating water companies in the American Water Wo~ks  System on 
an at-cost, not-for-profit basis in accordance with a management and service agreement. 
Purchases of such services by the Company were accounted for as follows: 

Included in operation and maintenance expense as a 
charge against income 

Capitalized in various balance sheet accounts 

The Company has three operating agreements with American Anglian Environmental 
Technologies, Inc. ( A S T ) ,  an affiliate, for the lease of granular activated carbon at one of the 
Company's water treatment plants. The agreements provide for AAET to regenerate the spent 
carbon and return it to the water treatment plant where it originated. Under the terms of the 
agreement, AAET will provide carbon for a period of thirty-six months beginning in March 
1997, 1998 and 1999. The carbon is scheduled for replacement at thirty-six month intervals and 
is warranted to perform to specific standards during that period. The Company paid $74 in 1999 
and $69 in 1998 under these agreements. 
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KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 

Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts) 

Note 14 - Fair Values of Financial Instruments 

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Company in estimating its fair 
value disclosures for financial instruments: 

Current assets and current liabilities: The carrying amount reported in the balance sheet 
for current assets and current liabilities approximates their fair value. 

Preferred stocks with mandatory redemption requirements and long-term debt: The fair 
values of the Company's preferred stocks with mandatory redemption requirements and 
long-term debt are estimated using discounted cash flow analyses based on the Company's 
current incremental financing rates for similar types of securities. 

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Company's financial instruments at 
December 3 1 are as follows: 

Carrying Carrying 
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value 

Preferrzd stock with mandatory 
redemption requirements $ 5,468 $ 5,118 $ 5,516 $ 6,237 

Long-term debt, including 
current maturities 67,000 62,701 67,000 70,902 

.>. Note 15 - Operating Leases 

The company has entered into operating leases involving certain equipment. Rental 
expenses under operating leases were $85 for 1999 and $93 for 1998. The operating leases for 
the equipment expire over the next 5 years. Certain leases have renewal options from one year to 
the usefid life of the equipment. 

At December 3 1, 1999, the minimum annual future rental commitments under operating 
leases that have initial or remaining noncancellable lease terms in excess of one year are $84 in 
2000, $68 in 2001 and $47 in 2002, $3 in 2003 and $2 in 2004. 

Note 16 - Commitments and Contingencies 

The Company's construction program for 2000 is estimated to cost approximately $13,250. 
Commitments have been made in connection with certain projects included in this program. 

The Company is routinely involved in legal actions. In the opinion of management, none of 
these matters will have a material adverse effect, if any, on the financial position, results of 
operations or cash flows of the Company. 
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Kentucky-American Water Company 

Other Information 
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Report of Independent Accountants 

To the Board of Directors and Stockholder of 
Kentucky-American Water Company 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial 

statements taken as a whole. The accompanying Historical Review is presented for purposes of 

additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such 

information, except for that portion marked "unaudited," on which we express no opinion, has 

been subjected to auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements; 

and, in our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the 

basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

January 28,2000 
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 
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Kentucky-American Water Company 
Historical Review 
(Dollars in thousands, except per customer amounts) 
For the Years Ended December 31,1999 

Utility plant (excluding CWiP) 
Accumuiated dspr~iation 

Net utiiily plant 

Net plant per cuslome? 
Construction expenditures 
Total aareta 
Capitaliilion at year end 

Common equity 
Preferred stock 

Long-term debt - 
includes current portion 

Customers served 
Residential ' 
Commercial ' 
indudrial ' 
Fire service ' 

Water sales (gallons) 
Residential . 
Commetdal ' 
Industrial ' 
Public and other' 

Annual tales per customer 
(gallons)' 

Operating revenues 
Water service 

Residential 
Commercial 

Industrial 
Fire service 
Public and other 

Wastewater service 
Mher water revenues 

Annual revenue per customer* 
Net income 

Coverage ratios 
On long-term debt interest 

before inmme taxes ' 
On total interesi before 

inmme taxes' 

On total Red charges 
including preferred dividends 

Before income taxes ' 2.8 2.8 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.2 1.6 
Afler income taxes ' 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1 .8 1.7 1.3 
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To the Board of Directors a n d  Stockholder of 

Kentucky-American Water Company 

In our opinion, the accompanying balance sheet and the related 

statements of income and retained earnings, of cash flows, of 

capitalization and of common stockholder's equity, present 

fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 

Kentucky-American Water Company (a wholly-owned 

subsidiary of American Water Works Company, Inc.) at 

December 31, 2000 and 1999, and the results of its operations 

and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with 

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 

of America. These financial statements are the responsibility of 

the Company's management; our responsibility is to express an 

opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We 

conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with 

auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 

America which require that we plan and perform the audit to 

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 

statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes 

examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts 

and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the 

accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 

management, and evaluating the overall financial statement 

presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable 

basis for our opinion. 

January 29, 2001 

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 

.................... Vice President .H. 0 Rawe 

. . . . . . . . . . . .  Vice President &Treasurer .C. D. Bush 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Comptroller T. R. Ba~ley 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Secretary H. A. M~ller, Jr. 

KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 2000 FINANCIAL REPORT 
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KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER CO P A W  - BALANCE SHEET (DOLLARS IN THOU~ANDS)  

Property, plant and equipment 

Utility plant - at original cost less accumulated depreciation 

Utility plant acquisition adjustments, net 

Nonutility property 

Current assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Customer accounts receivable 

Allowance for uncollectible accounts 

Prepaid Tax 

Unbilled revenues 

Miscellaneous receivables 

Materials and supplies 

Other 

Regulatory and other long-term assets 

Regulatory asset - income taxes recoverable through rotes 

Deferred programmed maintenance 

Preliminary survey and investigation 

Debt and preferred stock expense 

Other 

KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 2000 FINANCIAL REPORT 
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KENTUCKY-AM R l C A N  WATER CO Y -  BALANCE SHEET roouars IN rsousna~s) 

Capitalization 

Common stock $ 36,569 $ 36,569 

Paid-incapital 21 21 

Retained earnings 22,730 2 1,686 

Total common stockholder's equity 59,320 58,276 

Preferred stock without mandatory redemption requirements 

Preferred stock with mandotory redemption requirements 

Long-term debt 

Total capitalization 

Current liabilities 

Notes Payable to Affiliated Company 

Current portion of long-term debt 

Accounts payable 

Taxes accrued 

Interest accrued 

Wages and benefits accrued 

Tax collection payable 

Other 

Regulatory and other long-term liabilities 

Customer advances for construction 

Deferred income taxes 

Deferred investment tax credits 

Accrued pension expense 

Accrued posfretirement benefits expense 

Other 

Contributions in aid o f  construction 

The accompanying notes ore on integral port of these financial statements. 
KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 2000 FINANCIAL REPORT 
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Operating revenues $ 38,720 $ 39,104 

Operating expenses 

Operation and maintenonce 15,467 16,262 

Depreciation ond amortization 5,184 4,817 

Toxes on op&ating income 

General 1,762 1.71 1 

State income 

Federol income 

Utiliiy operating income 11,845 ' 1 1,478 

Other income 

Allowance for other funds used during construction 397 720 

Miscellaneous other income 12 62 

12,254 12,260 

Other deductions 

Mircellaneour other deductions 1,786 358 

Taxes on other income and deductions 

Siaie income I 146 1 ( 24 I 
Federal income ( 568 I ( 92 I 

1,072 242 

Income before interest charges 11,182 12,018 

Interest chorges 

interest on long-term debt 5,123 5,192 

Amorfizotion of debt expense 

Interest on bank debt 

Other interest 

Allowonce for borrowed funds used during construction 

Net income - $ 5,659 $ 7,134 

Retained eornings at beginning of year 

Net income 

Dividends 

Preferred stock 540 543 
Common stock 4,075 5,157 

4,6 15 5,700 

Retoined earnings at end of yeor 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 2000 FINANCIAL REPORT 
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Cash flows from operating activities 

Net income $ 5,659 $ 7,134 

Adiustments 
Depreciation and omortizotion 

Amortizotion. other 

Proviaion for deferred income taxes 

Amortization of deferred investment tax credits 

Provision for losses on accounts receivable 

Deferred programmed maintenance 

Allowance far other funds used during construction 

Pension occruai in excess of (less thon] funding 

Other, net 
Changes in current assets and liabilities 

Accounts receivable 

Unbilled revenuer 

Other current assets 

Accounts payable 

Taxes accrued 

Other current liabilities 

Net cash provided by operoiing activities 

Cash flows from investing act~ities 

Coorfruction expenditures ( 11,829) ( 18,386 ) 

Allowance for other funds used during construction 397 720 

Cost of removol, net af salvage 313 I 1 % )  

Net cash used in inverting activities (11,119) ( 17,824 ) 

Cash flows from financing activities 

1 12,000 ) Repayment of long-term debt 

Net borrowing under line-okredit agreement 15,114 5,716 

Dividends paid (4,615 1 15,700 1 
Customer advancer and confributions, net of refunds 1,621 3,926 

Redemption of preferred stock 148 I ( 4 8  1 

Net cash provided by financing activities 72 3,894 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 295 (8841 

Cash and cash equivalents ot beginning of yea! 

Corh and cash equivalents at end of year 

Cash paid during the year for: 

Interest, net of capitalized omount 

Income taxes $ 704 $ 2,996 

The occomponying notes ore on integrol por t  o f  these finonciol stoternents. 
KINTUCKY-AMERICAN WAXR COMPANY 2000 FINANCIA1 REPORT 
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N (DOUARS IN THOUSANDS) 

Common Stockholder's Equity 

Common stock - no par value, authorized 2,000,000 shares, 
issued and outstanding 1,567,391 shares in 2000 and 1999, respectively $ 36,569 $ 36,569 
Paid-in capital 21 21 
Retained earnings 

Preferred Stocks - $100 par value, authorized 25,000 shares 

Without mandatory redemption requirements 
Cumulative preferred stock 
5.75% series, 4,700 shares 
5.5% series, 5,000 shares 
5% series, 6,000 shares 

With mandatory redemption requirements 
Cumulative preferred stock 
4.5% series, 0 and 8 0  shares outstanding in 2000 and 

1999 respectively $101.00 
7.9% series, 9,200 and 9,600 shares issued and 

outstanding in 2000 and 1999, respectively $100.00 
8.47% series, 45,000 shares issued and outstanding $100.00 

Long-Term Debt 

General mortgage bonds, 
9.83% series due 2000 
8.36% series due 2001 
7.2 1 % series due 2002 
6.79% series due 2005 
9.37% series due 201 9 
6.96% series due 2023 
7.15% series due 2027 
6.99% series due 2028 

Less: Current portion of long-term debt 

Long-term debt net of current maturities 

Total capitalization 

The accompanying notes are on integral part of these financial statements. 
KENTUCKY-AMfRICAN WATER COMPANY 2000 FINANCIAL REPORl 
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(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPI IN SHARE AMOUNTS) 

Balance at December 31, 1998 $1,567,391 

Net income 

Sale of common stock 

Dividends 

Preferred stock 

Common stock, $3.29 per share 

Balance at December 31, 1999 1,567,391 

Net income 

Dividends 

Preferred stock 

Common stock, $2.60 per share 

Balance at December 31, 2000 $1,567,391 

The accompanying notes are an integral part o f  these financial statements. 
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W T E  2 - S W l F l C A N T  ACCOUNTING POL861ES r ro !~ r~ i~uro !  
prxess in a per id  .iifiermt f r m ~  the p e r d  in w h i ~ h  t l l i v  \vaul,l h , ~ w  bccn reflccrcd in inc mt I q  an 11nrq111atc.J 
C~mpan):  Tlwse Jef',rreJ r c p l a t q  a b r r i  anJ I~,~hilirir.- arc t hm rerlcctr.1 in the in;orue srjrement in the perid 
in which the MIIC  .mounts are rcflecrd in the rare. chxge,l for ccr\.i~c. 

lant and replacements of retirement units of property are capitalized. Costs include material, 
indirect items as engineering and supervision, payroll taxes and benefits, transportation and 

ds used during construction. Repairs, maintenance and minor replacements of property are 
ations. The cost of properm units retired in the ordinaw course of business plus removal . - .  

vage) is charged to accumulated depreciation. The cost of property, plant and equipment is 
g the straight line method. The depreciation rates, based on the average balance of depreciable 
.61% in 2000 and 2.54% in 1999. 

on's regulations, depreciation on contributed facilities is charged to 
ion. Such depreciation amounted to $580 in 2000 and $542 in 1999. 

include the difference between the purchase price of utility plant and its 
iation) when first devoted to public service. Commission approved utility 
n amortized to income over 10 years. 

Is cash is invested in interest bearing accounts. The Company considers all highly 
y of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. There were no 

at December 31,2000 or 1999. 

at average cost. 

Long-Term Assets 
ded a regulatory asset for the additional revenues expected to be realized as the tax effects 

ly flowed through to customers reverse. These temporary differences are 
between book and tax depreciation on property  laced in service before the 

ion of full normalization for rate making purposes. The regulatory assets for income taxes 
e reduction expected in future revenues as deferred taxes previously ~rovided, 
en the state and federal income tax rates under prior law and the current 

e average remaining service lives of the related assets. 

ts are deferred and amortized to current operations on a straight-line basis over a 
15 years, as authorized by the Commission in their determination of rates charged 

n charges generally relate to future construction projects. Management 
imately be recovered through rates. 

t-line basis over the lives of the respective issues. Call premiums on the 
as unamortized debt expense, are deferred and amortized to the extent they 

e service rates. Expenses of preferred stock issues without sinking fund provisions 
m the date of issue; expenses of issues with sinking fund provisions are charged to 

31, 2000 and 1999 include payables to banks of $0 and $634, respectively, 
presented to the banks for payment, net of the related bank balance. 

00 RNANCIAI RIPORT 
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of Construction 
and contributions tion necessary to 

ission, advances for refundable for limited periods of 

3 ustomers begin to receive servlce. Amounts whlch are no longer refundable are reclassified to contr~butlons 
of coasmctlon. 

'1 
ant funded by contributions is excluded from rate base and is not depreciated for rate-making purposes. 

ally, advances and contributions received during the period of January 1,1987 through June 12,1996 have 
included in taxable income and the related property is depreciable for tax purposes. As a result of a tax law 

ange, advances and contributions received subsequent to June 12, 1996 are excluded from taxable income. 

011 January 11, 2001, the Internal Revenue Service issued regulations that excluded Lateral service lines from its 
definition of contributions in aid of construction that are not included in taxable income. These customer 
connection fees are defined as the cost of installing a connection or service line from the Company's main lines 
to the lines owned by the customer. The regulations were effective immediately, and the Company is now paying 
tax on money or property received for these connections. 

Recognition of Revenues 
Water service revenues for financial reporting purposes include amounts billed to customers on a cycle basis and 
unbilled amounts based on estimated usage from the date of the latest meter reading to the end of the accounting 
period. 

Income Taxes 
The Companv, American and affiliates participate in a consolidated federal income tax return. Federal income . . 
tax expense for financial reporting purposes is provided on a separate return basis, except that the federal income 
tax rate applicable to the consolidated group is applied to separate company taxable income and the benefit of 
net operating losses, if any, is recognized currently. 

Certain income and expense items are accounted for in different time periods for financial reporting than for 
income tax reportingpurposes. Deferred income taxes have been provided on the difference between the tax basis 
of assets and liabilities and the amounts at which they are carried in the financial statements. These deferred 
income taxes are based on the enacted tax rates anticipated to be in effect when such temporary differences are 
expected to reverse. Regulatory assets and liabilities are recognized for the effect on revenues expected to be 
realized as the tax effects of temporary differences previously flowed through to customers reverse. 

Investment tax credits have been deferred and are being amortized to income over the average estimated service 
lives of the related assets. 

Allowance for Funds Used During Construction (AFUDC) 
AFUDC is a noncash adjustment to income with a corresponding charge to utility plant which represents the cost 
of borrowed funds and a return on equity funds devoted to plant under construction. A N D C  is recorded to the 
extent permitted by the Commission. 

Environmental Costs 
Environmental expenditures that relate to current operations or provide a future benefit are expensed or 
capitalized, as appropriate. Remediation costs that relate to an existing condition caused by past operations are 
accrued when it is probable that these costs will be incurred and can be reasonably estimated. There were no 
remediation costs accrued at December 31, 2000 or 1999. 

Asset Impairment 
Long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangible assets held and used by the Company are reviewed for 
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets, on a 
separate entity basis, may not be recoverable. If the sum of the future cash flows expected to result from the use 

KINTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPPNY 2000 IINANCIAL RtPORT 
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- 

ars presented In the statement o 

era1 income taxes: 

mort~zation of deferred investment tax credits 

KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 2000 FINANCIAL REPORT 
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ring 2000 the Company recognized a net settlement gain of $523 relating to the transfer of annuities from the 
to a separate third-party life insurance company. 

irement Benefits Other Than Pensions 
e Company participates in an American plan that provides certain life insurance benefits for retired employees 

nd certain health care benefits for retired employees and their dependents. Substantially all employees may 
come eligible for these benefits if they reach retirement age while still working for the Company. Retirees and 
eir dependents under age 65 can elect either a comprehensive medical plan under which covered expenses are 
id at 80% after an annual deductible has been satisfied or, a managed care plan that requires copayments. 

mployees who elect to retire prior to attaining age 65 are required to make contributions toward their medical 
rage until attaining age 65. Retirees and their dependents age 65 and over are covered by a Medicare 
lement plan. Costs to the Company for postretirement benefits other than pensions are based on an 

ocation from American of the total cost related to the plan. Information regarding accumulated and projected 
enefit obligations is not prepared at the subsidiary level. The Company made contributions to trust funds 
stablished for these postretirement benefits of $499 in 2000 and $578 in 1999. The Company's policy is to fund 
ostretirement benefits costs accrued. 

KENTUCKY-kMERICAN WkTIR COMPANY 2000 ifNANCIA1 REPORT 
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[DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER CUSTOMER AMOUNTS) 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 

Utiliiy plant (excluding CWlP] 

Accumulated depreciation 

Net utility plant 

Net plant per customer* 

Construction expenditures 

Total assets 

Capitolizotion ot year end 

Common equity 

Preferred stock 

Long-term debt - 
includes current portion 

Customers sewed (000) 

Residential * 89 87 84 8 1 78 76 68 

Commercial * 8 8 8 7 7 7 7 

Industrial ' 1 1 

Fire service & other * 2 1 1 1 1 I 1 

99 96 93 90 87 84 76 
ppp 

Water sales (million gallons) 

Residential * 

Commerciol 

Industrial ' 973 1,067 1,144 1 ,08 1 981 98 1 852 

Public and other* 1,822 1,998 1,860 1,759 1,772 1,780 1,687 

Annuol sales per customer (million gallonrjX 130 139 140 136 144 145 146 

KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 2000 ANNUAL REPORT 
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(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER CUSTOMER AMOUNTS) 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 

Operating revenues 

Water service 

Residential 

Commercial 

lndustiiol 

Fire service 

Public ond other 

Wastewater service 

Other water revenues 

Annuol revenue per customef 

Net income 

Coverage ratios 

On long-term debt interest 
before income taxer * 

On total interest 
before income taxer* 

On total fixed charges including preferred dividends 

Before income taxes * 2.3 2.8 2.8 

After income taxes * 1.7 2.0 2.0 

* Unaudited 

KENTUCKY-PIMERICAN WATER COMPANY 2000 FINANCIAL REPORT 
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KentucWAmerican Water 
Company Service Area .&= Bulk Sales Customers 

@ Jessamine South-Elkhorn 

@ City of Veisaiiies 

@ Spears 

@ Midway 

@ North Middletown 

@ Noflhern Georgetown 

Treatment Piants 

Exhibit 28
Page 41 of 88



Exhibit 28
Page 42 of 88



KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 

An American Water System Company 
2300 Richmond Road 

Lexington, Kentucky 40502 

Board of Directors 

J. James Ban, President & Chief Executive Officer 
American Water Works Company, Inc. 

G. C. Smith, Director 
American Water Works Company, Inc. 

Ellen C. Wolf, Vice President & Chief Financial Officer 
American Water Works Company, Inc. 

Daniel L. Kelleher, Senior Vice President 
American Water Works Service Company, Inc. 

Chris E. Jarrett, Chairman of the Board 
Kentucky-American Water Company 

R. W. Mundy, 11, President 
Kentucky-American Water Company 

W. L. Rouse, Jr. 
Rouse Companies 

W. T. Young, Jr. 
W. T. Young, Inc. 

Elizabeth H. Gemmill, Esq., Managing Trustee 
Warwick Foundation 

Lindsey W. Ingram, Jr., Esq. 
Stoll, Keenon and Park LLP 
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Officers 

President ...................................................................... Roy W. Mundy II 
Vice President .............................................................. Nick 0. Rowe 
Vice President, Treasurer and Comptroller ................. Michael A. Miller 
Vice President and Secretary ....................................... Herbert A. Miller, Jr. 
Assistant Treasurer ...................................................... Roy L. Ferrell, Sr. 
Assistant Treasurer ...................................................... James R. Hamilton 
Assistant Treasurer and Assistant Secretary ................ Nancy M. Strickland 
Assistant Secretary ...................................................... Stephen N. Chambers 
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PricewaterhouseCooperr LLP 
Two Commerce Square, Suite 1700 
2001 Market Street 
Philadelphia PA 19103-7042 
Telephone (267) 330 3000 
Facsimile (267) 330 3300 

Report of Independent Accountants 

To the Board of Directors and Stockholder of 
Kentucky-American Water Company 

In our opinion, the accompanying balance sheet and the related statement of income, of 

retained earnings, of cash flows, of capitalization and of common stockholder's equity present 

fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Kentucky-American Water Company (a 

wholly-owned subsidiq of Am erican Water Works Company, Inc.) at December 31,2001 

and 2000, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in 

conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management; our 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these fmancial statements based on our audits. We 

conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with auditing standards generally 

accepted in the United States of America, which require that we pIan and perform the audit to 

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 

misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts 

and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and 

significant estimates made by management, and evaIuating the overall financial statement 

presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

February 1,2002 
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KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 

Balance Sheet 
(Dollars in thousands) 

December 31, 
2001 - rn 

Assets 
PropeIty, plant and equlpment 

Utility plant - at ariginai cost less accumulated depreciation 
Utility plant acquisition adjustments, net 

Non utiiity property 

Cunent assets 
Cash 
Customer accounts receivable 
Allowance for uncoilectible accounts 
Unbiiied revenues 
Prepaid tax 
Materials and suo~lies . . 
Deferred vacation pay 
Other 

Regulatory and other long-term assets 
Deferred business service oroiecl exoense . . 
Reg~iatary asset.mome taxes recoveraole Inro-gn rates 
Deol ana preferreo slock expense 
Defenea programme0 malnlenance 
Preiiminav survey and investigation 
Other 

Capitalization 
Common stock 
Paid-in capital 
Retained earnings 

Total common stockhoider's equity 

Preferred stock 
With mandatory redemption requirements 
Without mandatov redemplion requirements 

Long-term debt 

Capitalization and Liabilities 

Total capitalization 112,447 108,310 

Current liabilities 
Affiliate borrowings 
Current portion of long-term debt 
Accounts payable 
Taxes accrued 
Interest accrued 
Tax collections payable 
ACCruedvacaBonpay 
Other 

Regulatory and other long-term liabilities 
Customer advances for construction 
Deferred income taxes 
Deferred investment tax credits 
Accrued pension expense 
Accrued postretirement benefits expense 
Other 

Contributions in aid of construction 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 

Statement of Income 
(Dollars in thousands) 

Operating revenues 

Operating expenses 
Operation and maintenance 
Depreciation and amortization 
General Taxes 

Utility operating income 

Other income (deductions) 
Allowance for other funds used during construction 
Miscellaneous other income 
Miscellaneous other deductions 

lncome before interest charges and income taxes 

Interest charges 
lnterest on long-term debt 
Interest on bank debt 
Amortization of debt expense 
Other interest 
Allowance for borrowed funds used during construction 

lncome before income taxes 

Provision for income taxes 
Federal income taxes 
State income taxes 

Net income 

Consolidated Statement of Retained Earnings 
(Dollars in thousands) 

Retained earnings at beginning of year 
Net income 

Dividends 
Preferred stock 
Common stock 

Retained earnings at end of year 

Years Ended December 31, 
2001 - 2000 - 

$ 41,478 $ 38,720 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 

Statement of Cash Flows 
(Dollars in thousands) 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Net income 
Adjustments 

Depreciation and amortization 
Amortization, other 
Provision for deferred income taxes 
Amortization of deferred investment tax credits 
Provision for losses on accounts receivable 
Allowance for other funds used during construction 
Pension expense in excess of funding 
Deferred regulatory assets 
Other, net 
Changes in current assets and liabilities 

Accounts receivable 
Unbilled revenues 
Materials and supplies 
Other current assets 
Accounts payable 
Taxes accrued 
Interest accrued 
Other current liabilities 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Construction expenditures 
Allowance for other funds used during construction 
Cost of removal, net of salvage 
Payment for acquisition of public service district assets 

Net cash used in investing activities 

Cash flows from financing activities 
Proceeds from long-term debt issuance 
Net borrowings (repayments) under line-of-credit agreen 
Repayment of long-term debt 
Customer advances and contributions, net of refunds 
Redemption of preferred stock 
Dividends paid 
Debt issuance cost 

Net cash provided by financing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

Cash paid during the year for: 
Interest, net of capitalized amount 

Income taxes 

Years Ended December 31, 
2001 - 

The accompanying notes are an integralpart of these financial statements. 
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KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 

Statement of Capitalization 
(Dollars in thousands) 

Common stockholder's equity 

Common stock - no par value, authorized 

2,000,000 shares, issued and outstanding 1,567,391 shares 

in 2001 and 2000 

Paid in capital 

Retained earnings 

Preferred stocks - $100 par value, authorized 25,000 shares 

Without mandatory redemption requirements 

Cumulative preferred stock 

5.75% series, 4,700 shares issued and outstanding 

5.5% series, 5,000 shares issued and outstanding 

5.% series, 6,000 shares issued and outstanding 

With mandatoly redemption requirements 

Cumulative preferred stock 
7.9% series, 8,800 and 9,200 shares issued and outstanding 

in 2001 and 2000, respectively 

8.47% series, 45,000 shares issued and outstanding 

Long-term debt 

General mortgage bonds 
8.36% series due 2001 

7.21% series due 2002 

6.79% series due 2005 

6.96% series due 2023 

7.15% series due 2027 
6.99% series due 2028 

Senior notes 

6.87% series due 2011 

Less: Current portion of long-term debt and capital lease obligation 

Long-term debt net of current maturities 

Total capitalization 

Call Price December 3j ,  
Per Share 2001 - 2000 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 

Statement of Common Stockholder's Equity 
(Dollars in  thousands) 

Common Stock Paid-in Retained Stockholder's 

Shares Par Value Capital Earnings Equity 

Balance at December 31,1999 1,567,391 $ 36,569 $ 21 $ 21,686 $ 58,276 

Net income 5,659 5,659 

Sale of common stock 

Dividends 

Preferred stock (540) (540) 

Common stock, $2.60 per share (4,075) (4,075) 

Balance at December 31,2000 1,567,391 36,569 21 22,730 59,320 

Net income 7.010 7,010 

Sale of common stock 

Dividends 
Preferred stock (537) (537) 

Common stock, $3.06 per share (4,796) (4,796) 

Balance at December 31,2001 1,567,391 $ 36,569 $ 21 $ 24.407 $ 60.997 - 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Note 1 - Organization and Operation 

Kentucky-American Water Company (the Company) provides water service to 
approximately 103,000 customers and wastewater service to approximately 88 customers. These 
services are provided in 10 communities located in 10 counties in the state of Kentucky. As a 
public utility operating in Kentucky, the Company functions under rules and regulations 
prescribed by the Kentucky Public Service Commission (the Commission). The Company is a 
wholly-owned subsidiary of American Water Works Company, Inc. (American). 

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date 
of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. 
Actual results could differ fiom these estimates. 

Regulation 

The Company has incurred various costs and received various credits, which have been 
reflected as regulatory assets and liabilities on its balance sheet. Accounting for such costs and 
credits as regulatory assets and liabilities is in accordance with Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards No. 71, "Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation" 
(SFAS No. 71). This statement sets forth the application of generally accepted accounting 
principles for those companies whose rates are established by or are subject to approval by an 
independent third-party regulator. Under SFAS No. 71, regulated companies defer costs and 
credits on the balance sheet as regulatory assets and liabilities when it is probable that those costs 
and credits will be recognized in the rate-making process in a period different from the period in 
which they would have been reflected in income by an unregulated company. These deferred 
regulatory assets and liabilities are then reflected in the income statement in the period in which 
the same amounts are reflected in the rates charged for service. 
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Property, Plant and Equipment 

Additions to utility plant and replacements of retirement units of property are capitalized. 
Costs include material, direct labor and such indirect items as engineering and supervision, 
payroll taxes and benefits, transportation and an allowance for h d s  used during construction. 
The costs incurred to acquire and internally develop computer software for internal use are 
capitalized as a unit of property. Repairs, maintenance and minor replacements of property are 
charged to current operations. The cost of property units retired in the ordinary course of business 
plus removal cost (net of salvage) is charged to accumulated depreciation. The cost of property, 
plant and equipment is depreciated using the straight-line method. The depreciation rates, based 
on the average balance of depreciable property, were 2.69% in 2001 and 2.61% in 2000. 

In accordance with the Commission's regulations, depreciation on contributed facilities is 
charged to contributions in aid of construction. Such depreciation amounted to $642 in 2001 and 
$580 in 2000. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Substantially all of the Company's cash is invested in interest bearing accounts. The 
Company considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when 
purchased to be cash equivalents. There were no cash equivalents held at December 3 1,2001 or 
2000. 

Materials and Supplies 

Materials and supplies are stated at average cost. 

ReguIafoty and long-Term Assets 

Deferred business services project expenses consist of reengineering and start-up 
activities for consolidated customer and shared administrative service centers that are being 
established by American. These costs are being deferred as it is expected that these costs will be 
recovered in the rates charged for utility service in the future. 

The Company has deferred the cost of increased security measures that were implemented 
to secure facilities after the terrorist attacks on September 11,2001. These costs are being 
deferred as it is expected that these costs will be recovered in the rates charged for utility service 
in the future. 
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The Company has recorded a regulatory asset for the additional revenues expected to be 
realized as the tax effects of temporary differences previously flowed through to customers 
reverse. These temporary differences are primarily related to the difference between book and 
tax depreciation on property placed in service before the adoption by the Commission of full 
normalization for rate-making purposes. 

The regulatory asset for income taxes recoverable through rates is net of the reduction 
expected in future revenues as deferred taxes previously provided, attributable to the difference 
between the state and federal income tax rates under prior law and the current statutory rates, 
reverse over the average remaining service lives of the related assets. 

Debt, expense is amortized over the lives of the respective issues. Call premiums on the 
redemption of long-term debt, as well as unamortized debt expense, are deferred and amortized 
to the extent they will be recovered through future service rates. Expenses of preferred stock 
issues without sinking fund provisions are amortized over 30 years from the date of issue; 
expenses of issues with sinking fund provisions are charged to operations as shares are retired. 

Preliminary survey and investigation charges generally relate to future construction 
projects. Management believes these costs will ultimately be recovered through rates. 

Programmed maintenance costs are deferred and amortized to current operations on a 
straight-line basis over a period ranging between five and fifteen years, as authorized by the 
Commission in their determination of rates charged for service. 

Other Current Liabilities 

Other current liabilities at December 3 1,2001 and 2000 include payables of $929 and $0, 
respectively, which represent checks issued but not presented to the bank for payment. 

Advances and Contributions in Aid of Construction 

The Company may receive advances and contributions to fund construction necessary to 
extend service to new areas. As determined by the Commission, advances for construction are 
refundable for limited periods of time as new customers begin to receive service. Amounts 
which are no longer refundable are reclassified to contributions in aid of construction. 

Utility plant funded by advances and contributions is excluded from rate base and is not 
depreciated for rate-making purposes. Generally, advances and contributions received during the 
period of January 1, 1987 through June 12, 1996 have been included in taxable income and the 
related property is depreciable for tax purposes. As a result of a tax law change, advances and 
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contributions received subsequent to June 12, 1996 are excluded from taxable income and the 
related property is not depreciable for tax purposes. 

On January 11,2001 the Internal Revenue Service issued regulations that excluded lateral 
service lines from its definition of contributions in aid of construction that are not included in 
taxable income. These customer connection fees are defined as the cost of installing a 
connection or service line fiom the Company's main lines to the lines owned by the customer. 
The regulations were effective immediately, but the Company does not have customer connection 
fees. 

Recognition of Revenues 

Water s e ~ c e  revenues for financial reporting purposes include amounts billed to 
customers on a cycle basis and unbilled amounts based on estimated usage from the date of the 
latest meter reading to the end of the accounting period. 

Income Taxes 

The Company, its parent and affiliates participate in a consolidated federal income tax 
return. Federal income tax expense for financial reporting purposes is provided on a separate 
return basis, except that the federal income tax rate applicable to the consolidated group is 
applied to separate company taxable income and the benefit of net operating losses, if any, is 
recognized currently. 

Certain income and expense items are accounted for in different time periods for financial 
reporting than for income tax reporting purposes. Deferred income taxes have been provided on 
the difference between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and the amounts at which they are 
carried in the financial statements. These deferred income taxes are based on the enacted tax 
rates anticipated to be in effect when such temporary differences are expected to reverse. 
Regulatory assets and liabilities are recognized for the effect on revenues expected to be realized 
as the tax effects of temporary differences previously flowed through to customers reverse. 

Investment tax credits have been deferred and are being amortized to income over the 
average estimated service lives of the related assets. 

Allowance for Funds Used During Construction (AFUDC) 

AFUDC is a non-cash adjustment to income with a corresponding charge to utility plant, 
which represents the cost of borrowed funds and a return on equity funds devoted to plant under 
construction. AFUDC is recorded to the extent permitted by the Commission. 
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Environmental Costs 

Environmental expenditures that relate to current operations or provide a future benefit 
are expensed or capitalized as appropriate. Remediation costs that relate to an existing condition 
caused by past operations are accrued when it is probable that these costs will be incurred and 
can be reasonably estimated. There were no remediation costs accrued at December 31,2001 
and 2000. 

Asset Impairment 

Long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangible assets held and used by the Company 
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying amount of the assets, on a separate entity basis, may not be recoverable. If the sum of 
the future cash flows expected to result from the use of the assets and their eventual disposition is 
less than the carrying amount of the assets, an impairment loss is recognized. Measurement of an 
impairment loss would be based on the fair value of the assets. A regulatory asset is charged to 
earnings if and when future recovery in rates of that asset is no longer probable. 

New Accounting Standards 

On January 1,2001, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 
No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities" (SFAS 133), as 
amended. This statement establishes accounting and reporting standards for derivative 
instruments and hedging activities. SFAS 133 was issued by the Financial Accounting Standards 
Board (FASB) in June of 1998 and requires that an entity recognize all derivatives as either 
assets or liabilities in the statement of financial position and measure those instruments at fair 
value. This new accounting standard did not have any effect on the Company's financial position 
or results of operations. The Company's contracts that meet the definition of a derivative are for 
normal purchases and normal sales, are expected to result in a physical delivery, and are of 
quantities expected to be used or sold over a reasonable period in the normal course of business. 
The Company has no hedging activities. 

In June of 2001, the FASB issued Statements of Financial Accounting Standards No. 141, 
"Business Combinations" (SFAS 141) and No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets" 
(SFAS 142). SFAS 141 requires all business combinations initiated after June 30,2001 to be 
accounted for using the purchase method. Under SFAS 142, goodwill and intangible assets with 
indefinite lives are no longer amortized but are reviewed annually (or more frequently if 
impairment indicators arise) for impairment. Separable intangible assets that are not deemed to 
have indefinite lives will continue to be amortized over their useful lives. The amortization 
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provisions of SFAS 142 apply to goodwill and intangible assets acquired after June 30,2001. 
With respect to goodwill and intangible assets acquired prior to July 1,2001, the Company is 
required to adopt SFAS 142 effective January 1,2002. The Company is currently evaluating the 
effect that adoption of the provisions of SFAS 142 that are effective January 1,2002 will have on 
its results of operations and financial position. 

Also in June of 2001, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 
143, "Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations," (SFAS 143) on the accounting for 
obligations associated with the retirement of long-lived assets. SFAS 143 requires a liability to be 
recognized in the financial statements for retirement obligations meeting specific criteria. 
Measurement of the initial obligation is to approximate fair value with an equivalent amount 
recorded as an increase in the value of the capitalized asset. 

The asset will be depreciable in accordance with normal depreciation policy and the 
liability will be increased, with a charge to the income statement, until the obligation is settled. 
SFAS 143 is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15,2002. The Company is currently 
evaluating the effect that adoption of the provisions of SFAS 143 will have on its results of 
operations and financial position. 

In August of 2001, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 
144, "Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets," (SFAS 144) that 
replaces Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 121, "Accounting for the Impairment 
of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed of." SFAS 144 requires that 
one accounting model be used for long-lived assets to be disposed of by sale and broadens 
discontinued operations to include more disposal transactions. Under SFAS 144, operating 
losses of discontinued operations are recognized in the period in which they occur, instead of 
accruing future operating losses before they occur. SFAS 144 is effective for fiscal years 
beginning after December 15,2001. The Company is currently evaluating the effect that 
adoption of the provisions of SFAS 144 will have on its results of operations and financial 
position. 

Certain reclassifications have been made to conform previously reported data to the 
current presentation. 
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Note 3 - Utility Plant 

The components of utility plant at December 31 are as follows: 
2001 - 

Water plant 
Sources of supply $ 6,926 
Treatment and pumping 45,017 
Transmission and distribution 125,485 
Services, meters, and fire hydrants 47,024 
General structures and equipment 16,167 
Construction work in progress 8,954 

249,573 
Less - accumulated depreciation 48,781 

$ 200.792 

Note 4 - Preferred Stocks 

Preferred stock agreements have annual minimum sinking fund payments of $40 in 2002 
through 2006. The 7.9% series sinking fund payment of $40 is at the option of the Company. 

Note 5 - Long-Term Debt 

Maturities of long-term debt will amount to $13,000 in 2002, $0 in 2003 and 2004, 
$5,500 in 2005, and $0 in 2006. 

The general mortgage bond indentures, as supplemented, contain clauses restricting the 
declaration of common stock dividends and other distributions on capital stock if common 
stockholder's equity falls below a specified amount. There were no restrictions at December 3 1, 
2001. 

The general mortgage bonds are issuable in series. No bonds senior to the general 
mortgage bonds may be issued so long as the general mortgage bonds are outstanding. The 
amount of bonds authorized is unlimited as long as long-term debt does not exceed 65% of 
capitalization. Long-term debt is secured by utility plant. 
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Note 6 - Affiliate Borrowings 

During 2001, the Company maintained a line of credit through American Water Capital 
Corp. (AWCC), an affiliate (see Note 13: Related Party Transaction). AWCC is a special 
purpose corporation that serves as the primary funding vehicle for the Company. AWCC has a 
364-day $500 million revolving credit agreement with a group of 10 domestic and international 
banks. No compensating balances are required under the agreement. AWCC also issues 
commercial paper, and the revolving credit agreement also supports these borrowings. 

At December 31,2001 and 2000, there were $24,668 and $20,830 of short-term 
borrowings outstanding, respectively. The weighted average annual interest rate on these 
borrowings was 5.60% and 6.97% respectively. The unused line of credit at December 31,2001 
was $0. 

Note 7 - Financings 

During 2001 and 2000 the Company completed the following financings: 

Date Proceeds Issue 

03/29/01 $15,500 Senior Note, 6.87% due 201 1 

The senior note is unsecured and was issued to AWCC for the principal amount. AWCC 
provided the funding for this note by itself issuing $140 million of senior notes to institutional 
investors at a price equal to the principal amount. 
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Note 8 - General Taxes 

Components of general tax expense for the years presented in the statement of income are as 
follows: 

Gross receipts and franchise 
Property and capital stock 
PayroIl 

Note 9 - Income Taxes 

Components of income tax expense for the years presented in the statement of income are 
as follows: 

State income taxes: 
Current 
Deferred 

Non-current 

Federal income taxes: 
Current 
Deferred 

Non-current 
Amortization of deferred investment tax credits 
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A reconciliation of income tax expense at the statutory federal income tax rate to the 
actual income tax expense is as follows: 

Income tax at statutory rate of 35% 
Increases (decreases) resulting from - 

State taxes, net of federal income taxes 
Flow though differences 
Amortization of investment tax credits 
Other, net 

Actual income tax expense 

The following table provides the components of the net deferred tax liability at 
December 3 1 : 

Deferred tax assets: 
Advances and contributions 
Deferred investment credits 
Other 

Deferred tax liabilities: 
Utility plant, principally due to depreciation differences $39,052 $ 36,791 
Income taxes recoverable through rates 1,826 1,778 

Other 3,514 3,614 

44,392 42,183 

Net deferred tax liability $ 28,192 $ 27,271 

No valuation allowances were required on deferred tax assets at December 3 1,2001 and 
2000. 
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Note 10 - Rate Matters 

As necessary, the Company applies to the Commission for changes in the rates charged 
for service. The rate increase request is based on the level of operating expenses and capital 
costs that are expected to be in effect when the rates become effective. The revenues requested 
are based on forecasted sales, operating expenses and investments for the test year selected by the 
Company. 

The Company has received approval from the Commission to increase its rates for service 
as follows: 

Effective Requested Annual Estimated Annual Estimated Revenue 
Dates Effect on Revenues Effect on Revenues Granted Realized in 2001 

On April 28,2000, the Company filed a rate application with the Public Service 
Commission of the commonwealth of Kentucky ("Commission"), requesting $5.034 million in 
additional annual revenues that was subsequently revised to $4.685 million or 11.69%. 

On December 12,2000, the Commission issued an Order adjusting its original Order 
dated November 27,2000. The adjusted order corrected errors in the initial ruling and reduced 
the allowed revenue increase from $2.5 18 million to $2.17 1 million to be effective for service 
rendered on and after November 27,2000. Revenues realized in 2000 from this increase are 
estimated at $.208 million. 

On May 9,2001, a final decision was issued which addressed appeals from 
reconsideration made by the Company and the State Attorney General. The final decision 
adjusted the authorized revenue increase from $2.171 to $2.568 million or 6.42% of total 
operating revenues. 

Proposed Asset Protection Charge Tarzff 

On November 28,2001, the Company filed an application with the Commission seeking 
an asset protection charge tariff. The charge is comprised of two elements: (1) the projected 
annual increase in operating expenses since the last general rate case for the protection of assets, 
and (2) the revenue recovery of the capital expenditures made for the protection of assets since 
the last general rate case. 
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Note 11 - Employee Benefit Plans 

Employees' Stock Ownership Plan 

The Company participates in an Employees' Stock Ownership Plan sponsored by 
American, which provides for beneficial ownership of American common stock by all associates 
who are not included in a bargaining unit. Each participating associate can elect to contribute an 
amount that does not exceed 2% of their wages. In addition to the associate's participation, the 
Company makes a contribution equivalent to %% of each participant's qualified compensation, 
and matches 100% of the contribution by each participant. The Company expensed contributions 
of $62 for 2001 and $69 for 2000 that it made to the plan. 

Savings Plan for Employees 

The Company participates in a 401(k) Savings Plan for Employees sponsored by 
American. All Associates can make contributions that are invested at their direction in one or 
more funds including a fund consisting entirely of American common stock. The Company 
matches 50% of the fust 4% of each associate's wages contributed to the plan. The company 
expensed matching contributions to the plan totaling $85 for 2001 and $83 for 2000. All of the 
Company's matching contributions are invested in the fund of American common stock. 

Note 12 - Postretirement Benefits 

Pension Benefits 

The Company participates in a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan sponsored by 
American covering substantially all associates. Benefits under the plan are based on the 
associate's years of service and average annual compensation for those 60 consecutive months of 
employment, which yield the highest average. Pension cost of the Company is based on an 
allocation from American of the total cost related to the plan. Information regarding accumulated 
and projected benefit obligations is not prepared at the subsidiary level. The Company's funding 
policy is to contribute at least the minimum amount required under the Employee Retirement 
Income Security Act of 1974. The Company made no contribution to the plan in 2001 or 2000. 

In addition, during 2000, the Company recognized a settlement gain of $523 relating to 
the transfer of annuities from the plan to a separate third-party life insurance company. This 
settlement gain has been recognized as a decrease in deferred pension costs and accrued pension 
costs. 

Exhibit 28
Page 62 of 88



KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 

Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
(Dollars in thousands) 

Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions 

The Company participates in an American plan that provides certain life insurance 
benefits for retired associates and certain health care benefits for retired associates and their 
dependents. Substantially all associates may become eligible for these benefits if they reach 
retirement age while still working for the Company. Retirees and their dependents under age 65 
are covered by a point-of-service managed care plan that requires co-payments or an HMO. 
Associates who elect to retire prior to attaining age 65 are generally required to make 
contributions towards their medical coverage until attaining age 65. Retirees and their 
dependents age 65 and over are covered by a Medicare supplement plan. Costs of the Company 
are based on an allocation from American of the total cost related to the plan. Information 
regarding accumulated and projected benefit obligations is not prepared at the subsidiary level. 
The Company made contributions to trust funds established for these postretirement benefits of 
$561 in 2001 and $499 in 2000. The Company's policy is to fund postretirement benefits costs 
accrued. 

Note 13 -Related Party Transactions 

American Water Works Service Company, Inc. (AWWS), an affiliate, provides certain 
management services to the Company (administration, accounting, data processing, engineering, 
etc.) and other operating water companies in the American Water Works System on an at-cost, 
not-for-profit basis in accordance with a management and service agreement. Purchases of such 
services by the Company were accounted for as follows: 

Included in operation and maintenance expense 
as a charge against income 

Capitalized in various balance sheet accounts 

The Company provided workspace and information support system support for associates 
of the Southeast Region of AWWS. Charges for direct costs and indirect overhead costs 
associated with these associates are billed to AWWS on an at-cost, not for profit basis, which 
amounted to $43 in 2001 and $9 in 2000. At December 31,2001, net amounts receivable from 
this affiliate for these services were $4. 
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Some of the Company's associates have performed services at cost to AWWS relating to 
the establishment by American of consolidated customer and shared administrative service 
centers. The total amount of these services was $21 7 in 2001 and $1 15 in 2000. At 
December 31,2001, net amounts receivable from this affiliate for these services were $1 1. 

The Company has three operating agreements with American Water Services, (AWS) 
Inc., an affiliate, for the lease of granular activated carbon (GAC) at one of the Company's water 
treatment plants. The agreements provide for AWS to regenerate the spent material and return it 
to the water treatment plant where it originated. Under the terms of the agreements, AWS will 
provide carbon for a period of thirty-six months beginning in March 1999,2000, and 2001. The 
carbon is scheduled for replacement at thirty-six month intervals and is warranted to perform to 
specific standards during that period. The Company paid $82 in 2001 and $75 in 2000 to AWS 
under these agreements. 

The Company maintains a line of credit through American Water Capital Corp. (AWCC), 
an affiliate. The company paid AWCC fees of $47 in 2001 and $39 in 2000, preliminary costs of 
long-term financings of $1 17 in 2001 and $23 in 2000 and interest on borrowings of $486 in 
2001 and $443 in 2000. 

Note 14 - Fair Values of Financial Instruments 

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Company in estimating its fair 
value disclosures for financial instruments: 

Current assets and current liabilities: The carrying amount reported in the balance sheet 
for current assets and current liabilities approximates their fair value. 

Preferred stocks with mandatory redemption requirements and long-term debt: The fair 
values of the Company's prefened stocks with mandatory redemption requirements and long- 
term debt are estimated using discounted cash flow analyses based on the Company's current 
incremental financing rates for similar types of securities 
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The carrying amounts and fair values of the Company's financial instruments at 
December 3 1 are as follows: 

2001 2000 
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair 
Amount Value Amount Value 

Preferred stock with mandatory 
redemption requirements $ 5,380 $ 5,805 $ 5,420 $ 5,504 

Long-term debt, including current 
maturities other than obligations under 
capital leases 57,500 55,961 55,000 52,135 

Note 15 - Operating Leases 

The Company has entered into operating leases involving certain facilities and 
equipment. Rental expenses under operating leases were $134 in 2001 and $81 for 2000. The 
operating leases for their equipment expire over the next six years. 

At December 3 1,200 1, the minimum annual future rental commitments under operating 
leases that have initial or remaining non-cancellable lease terms in excess of one year are $61 in 
2003, $51 in 2004, $50 in 2005, and $34,000 in 2006. 

Note 16 - Commitments and Contingencies 

The Company's construction program for 2002 is estimated to cost approximately 
$1 6,633. Commitments have been made in connection with certain projects included in this 
program. 

The Company is routinely involved in legal actions. In the opinion of management, none 
of these matters will have a material adverse effect, if any, on the financial position or results of 
operations of the Company. 
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PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
Two Commerce Square, Suite 1700 
2001 Market Street 
Philadelphia PA 19103-7042 
Telephone (267) 330 3000 
Facsimile (267) 330 3300 

Report of Independent Accountants 

To the Board of Directors and Stockholder of 
Kentucky-American Water Company 

In our opinion, the accompanying Historical Review, except for that portion marked 

"audited", on which we express no opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation 

to the financial statements, taken as a whole, of Kentucky-American Water Company (a 

wholly-owned subsidiary of American Water Works Company, Inc.) for the years ended 

December 3 1,200 1 and 2000, which are covered by our reported dated February 1,2002 

presented in the first section of this document. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of 

forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The Historical Review 

is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial 

statements. Such information, except for that portion marked "audited" has been subjected 

to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements. 

February 1,2002 
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IDolIars in thousands, except per customer amounts1 

For the years ended December 31, 2 0 0 1  2 0 0 0  1 9 9 9  1 9 9 8  1997 1 9 9 1  

Utility pianl (excluding CWIP) 

Accumulated depreciation 

Net utility piant 

Net plant per customer ' 
Construction expenditures 

Total assets 

Capitalization at year end 

Common equity 

Preferred stack 

Long-term debt - includes current portion 

Customers served 

Residential ' 

Commerciai ' 

Industrial * 

Fire service &Other' 

Water sales (gallons) 

Residential ' 

Commercial ' 

Industrial ' 

Public and other' 

Annual sales per customer (gallons)^ 

Opefating revenues 

Water sewice 

Residential 

Commercial 

Industrial 

Fire service 

Public and other 

Wastewater service 

Other water revenues 

Annual revenue per customer * 

Net income 

Coverage ratios 

On long-term debt interest before income taxes * 

On total interest before income taxes ' 

On total fixed charges including preferred dividends 

Before income taxes ' 

Afier income taxes ' 

Unaudited 
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PricewaterhoureCoopers LLP 
Two Commerce Square, Sute 1700 
2001 Market Street 
Phiiadelphia PA 19103-7042 
Telephone (267) 330 3000 
Facsimile (267) 330 3300 

Report of Independent Accountants 

To the Board of  Directors and Stockholders 
Kentucky-American Water Company 

In our opinion, the accompanying balance sheets and the related statements of income, of 
capitalization, of retained earnings and stockholders' equity and of cash flows present fairly, in 
all material respects, the financial position of Kentucky-American Water Company (a wholly- 
owned subsidiary of American Water Works Company, Inc.) at December 31,2002 and 2001, 
and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial 
statements are the responsibility of the Company's management; our responsibility is to express 
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these 
statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, 
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 

February 6,2003 
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KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
Balance Sheet 

(Dollars in thousands) 

Proper*, plant  2nd equipment  

utility plant - at ari@nal cost less accumulalsd depreciation 
Utility acquisition adjusmentr, net 

Non utility property 

c u r r e n t  assets 
Cash 
customer accounts receivable 
A I ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~  for uncolleaible accounts 
Unbilled revenvsr 
~~~~~~t~ receivable - airociatsd companies 

~ s t e r i a l s  and supplier 
Defensd vacation pay  

Capital izat ion 
Common stock 
Pad-in capital 
Rerained e m i n m  

T O ~ ~ I  common rtackholdsr's equity 

Prefensd smct 
w i t h  mandataT redemption isquiremsnis 
without mandator/ redemption iequiiemsnfr 

L o n g i e m  debt 

Total capitalization 

C u r r e n t  liabilities 
 NO^ payable - associated companies 
cunm ponion of long-term debt 
~ c c o u n u  payable 
~~~~~~t~ payable - ariosiaied companier 
Taxer accrved 
~ntercst  accrued 
Tar soli~ctionr pay ablc 
~ ~ c r u e d  vacation pay 
Other 

nogulatov and ~ r h e r  long-term liahililiex 
c ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ E ~  for conrmcrion 
Deferred incoms caxcier 
~ ~ h n e d  invsrmenr tax credits 
~ m u e d  pension elpsnrc 
~ c c r u c d  par i r~~i remenf  benefits erpense 
0 t h ~ .  

cap i ta l i za t ion  and  t i ab i l i l i e s  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Opera t ing  revenues  

KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
Statement of Income 
(Dollars in thousands) 

Opera t ing  expenses  
Operation and maintenance 

Depreciation and amortization 

General taxes 

Utility ope ra t ing  income 

O t h e r  income (deductions) 
Allowance for other funds used during construction 
Miscellaneous other income 

Miscellaneous other deductions 

Income before interest charges and income taxes 

Interes t  charges  
Interest on long-term debt 
lnterest on bank debt 

Amortization of debt expense 
Other interest 
Allowance for borrowed funds used during construction 

Income before income taxes 

Provision for income tares 
Federal income taxes 
State income taxes 

Net income 

Dividends on  referred stock 

Net income to common stock 

Years  E n d e d D e c e m b e r 3 1 ,  

$ 43,627 $ 41,478 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

-3- 
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Cash  flaws from operat ing activities 
Net income 
Adjustments: 

Depreciation and amortization 
Amortization, other 
Pror,ision for deferred income taxes 
Amortization of deferred investment tax credits 
Provision for losses on accounts receivable 
Allowance for other funds used during construction 
Pension expense in excess of  funding 
Deferred regulatory assets 
Other, net 
Changes in current assets and liabilities: 

~ c c o u n t s  receivable 
Unbilled revenues 
Materials and supplies 
Other current assets 
Accounts payable 
Taxes accrued 
Interest accrued 
Other current liabilities 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash  flaws from investing activities 
Construction expenditures 
Allowance for other funds used during construction 
Cost of removal, net of  salvage 
Payment for acquisition of public service district assets 

Net cash used in investingactivities 

Cash  flows from financing activities 
Proceeds from long-term debt issuance 
Net borrowings (repayments) under line-of-credit ageement 
Repayment of long-term debt 
Customer advances and contributions, net of refunds 
Redemption ofpreferred stock 
Dividends paid 
Debt issuance cost 

Net cash provided by financing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of  y ear 

Cash and cash equivalents at end ofyear  

Cash paid durinz the year for: 
Interest, net of capitalized amount 

Income taxes 

KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
Statement of Cash Flows 

(Dollars in thousands) 
Years Ended December  31. 

2002 - 2001 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

-4- 
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KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
Statement of Capitalization 

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts) 
Call Price December31,  

P e r S h a r e  2002 - 2001 

Common stockholder's equity 

Common stock - no par value, authorized 

2,000,000 shares, issued and outstanding 1,567,391 shares 

in 2002 and 2001 

Paid in capital 

Retained earnings 

Preferred stocks - $100 par value, authorized 25,000 shares 

Without mandatory redemption requirements 

Cumulative preferred stock 

5.75% series, 4,700 shares issued and outstanding 

5.5% series, 5,000 shares issued and outstanding 

5.% series, 6,000 shares issued and outstanding 

With mandatory redemption requirements 

Cumulative preferred stock 

7.9% series, 8,400 and 8,800 shares issued and outstanding 

in 2002 and 2001, respectively 

8.47% series, 45,000 shares issued and outstanding 

Long-term debt 

General mor t sge  bonds 

7.21% series due 2002 

6.79% series due 2005 

6.96% series due 2023 

7.1 5% series due 2027 

6.99% series due 2028 

Notes payable t o  affiliate 

5.65% series due 2007 

6.87% series due201 1 

Less: Current portion of long-term debt 

Lonz-term debt net of current maturities 

Total capitalization 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 

. j- 

Exhibit 28
Page 74 of 88



KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
Statement of Retained Earnings and Stockholders' Equity 

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts) 

Balance atDecember31,  2000 

Net income 

Dividends 

Preferred stock 

Common stock, $2.60 per share 

Balance at Decemher31, 2001 

Net income 

Dividends 
Preferred stock 

Common stock, $3.06 per share 

Balance at December31, 2002 

Common Stock 

Shares Par Value 

1,567,391 $ 36,569 

Paid-in 

Capital 

$ 21 - 

Retained Stockholders' 

Earnings Equity 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

-6- 

Exhibit 28
Page 75 of 88



KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31,2002 and 2001 

(Dollars in thousands) 

Note 1 - Organization and Operation 

Kentucky-American Water Company (the Company) provides water service to 
approximately 105,000 customers and wastewater service to approximately 84 customers. These 
services are provided in 10 communities located in 10 counties in the state of  Kentucky. As a 
public utility operating in Kentucky, the Company functions under rules and regulations 
prescribed by the Public Service Commission of the Commonwealth of Kentucky (the 
Commission). The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of American Water Works Company, 
Inc. (American). 

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies 

Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 

generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts 
of revenues and expenses during the period. Actual results could differ from these estimates. 

Regulation 
The Company has incurred various costs and received various credits, which have been 

reflected as regulatory assets and liabilities on its balance sheet. Accounting for such costs and 
credits as regulatory assets and liabilities is in accordance with Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards No. 71, "Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation" 
(SFAS No. 71). This statement sets forth the application of generally accepted accounting 
principles for those companies whose rates are established by or are subject to approval by an 
independent third-party regulator. Under SFAS No. 71, regulated companies defer costs and 
credits on the balance sheet as regulatory assets and liabilities when it is probable that those costs 
and credits will be recognized in the rate-making process in a period different from the period in 
which they would have been reflected in income by an unregulated company. These deferred 
regulatory assets and liabilities are then reflected in the income statement in the period in which 
the same amounts are reflected in the rates charged for senice. 
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KENTUCKY-AMERICAN W A T E R  COMPANY 
Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31,2002 and 2001 

(Dollars in thousands) 

Note 2 (continued) 

Property, Plant and Equipment 
Additions to utility plant and replacements of retirement units of property are capitalized. 

Costs include material, direct labor and such indirect items as engineering and supervision, 
payroll taxes and benefits, transportation and an allowance for funds used during construction. 
The costs incurred to acquire and internally develop computer software for internal use are 
capitalized as a unit of property. Repairs, maintenance and minor replacements of property are 
charged to current operations. The cost of property units retired in the ordinary course of business 
plus removal cost (net of salvage) is charged to accumulated depreciation. The cost of property, 
plant and equipment is depreciated using the straight-line method. The depreciation rates, based 
on the average balance of depreciable property, were 2.63 % in 2002 and 2.69% in 2001. 

In accordance with the Commission's regulations, depreciation on contributed facilities is 
charged to contributions in aid of construction. Such depreciation amounted to $784 in 2002 and 
$642 in 2001. 

Cash and Cash Eq~iivalents 
Substantially all of the Company's cash is invested in interest bearing accounts. The 

Company considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when 
purchased to be cash equivalents. There were no cash equivalents held at December 31,2002 or 
2001. 

Materials and Supplies 
Materials and supplies are stated at average cost. 

Regulatory and Long-Term Assets 
Deferred business services project expenses consist of reengineering and start-up 

activities for consolidated customer and shared administrative service centers that are being 
established by American. These costs are being deferred as it is expected that these costs will be 
recovered in the rates charged for utility service in the future. 

The Company has deferred $1,703 related to the cost of increased security measures that 
were implemented to secure facilities after the terrorist attacks on September 11,2001. These 
costs are being deferred as it is expected that these costs will be recovered in the rates charged for 
utility service in the future. 

The Company has recorded a regulatory asset for the additional revenues expected to be 
realized as the tax effects of temporary differences previously flowed through to customers 
reverse. These temporary differences are primarily related to the difference between book and 
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KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31,2002 and 2001 

(Dollars in thousands) 

Note 2 (continued) 

tax depreciation on property placed in service before the adoption by the Commission of full 
normalization for rate-making purposes. 

The regulatory asset for income taxes recoverable through rates is net of the reduction 
expected in future revenues as deferred taxes previously provided, attributable to the difference 
between the state and federal income tax rates under prior law and the current statutory rates, 
reverse over the average remaining service lives of the related assets. 

Debt expense is amortized over the lives of the respective issues. Call premiums on the 
redemption of long-term debt, as well as unamortized debt expense, are deferred and amortized 
to the extent they will be recovered through future service rates. Expenses of prefened stock 
issues without sinking fund provisions are amortized over 30 years from the date of issue; 
expenses of issues with sinking fund provisions are charged to operations as shares are retired. 

Preliminary survey and investigation charges generally relate to future construction 
projects. Management believes these costs will ultimately be recovered through rates. 

Programmed maintenance costs are deferred and amortized to current operations on a 
straight-line basis over a period ranging between five and fifteen years, as authorized by the 
Commission in their determination of rates charged for service. 

Other Current Liabilities 
Other current liabilities at December 3 1,2002 and 2001 include payables of $600 and 

$929, respectively, which represent checks issued but not presented to the bank for payment. 

Advances and Contributions in Aid of Construction 
The Company may receive advances and contributions to fund construction necessary to 

extend service to new areas. As determined by the Commission, advances for construction are 
refundable for limited periods of time as new customers begin to receive service. Amounts 
which are no longer refundable are reclassified to contributions in aid of construction. 

Utility plant funded by advances and contributions is excluded from rate base and is not 
depreciated for rate-making purposes. Generally, advances and contributions received during the 
period of January 1, 1987 through June 12, 1996 have been included in taxable income and the 
related property is depreciable for tax purposes. As a result of a tax law change, advances and 
contributions received subsequent to June 12, 1996 are excluded from taxable income and the 
related property is not depreciable for tax purposes. 

Exhibit 28
Page 78 of 88



KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31,2002 and 2001 

(Dollars in thousands) 

Note 2 (continued) 

On January 11,2001 the Internal Revenue Service issued regulations that excluded lateral 
service lines from its definition of contributions in aid of construction that are not included in 
taxable income. These customer connection fees are defined as the cost of installing a 
connection or service line from the Company's main lines to the lines owned by the customer. 
The regulations were effective immediately, but the Company does not have customer connection 
fees. 

Recognition of  Revenues 
Water service revenues for financial reporting purposes include amounts billed to 

customers on a cycle basis and unbilled amounts based on estimated usage from the date of the 
latest meter reading to the end of the accounting period. 

Income Taxes 
The Company, its parent and affiliates participate in a consolidated federal income tax 

retum. Federal income tax expense for financial reporting purposes is provided on a separate 
retum basis, except that the federal income tax rate applicable to the consolidated group is 
applied to separate company taxable income and the benefit of net operating losses, if any, is 
recognized currently. 

Certain income and expense items are accounted for in different time periods for financial 
reporting than for income tax reporting purposes. Deferred income taxes have been provided on 
the difference between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and the amounts at which they are 
carried in the financial statements. These deferred income taxes are based on the enacted tax 
rates anticipated to be in effect when such temporary differences are expected to reverse. 
Regulatory assets and liabilities are recognized for the effect on revenues expected to be realized 
as the tax effects of temporary differences previously flowed through to customers reverse. 

Investment tax credits have been deferred and are being amortized to income over the 
average estimated service lives of the related assets. 

Allowance for Funds Used During Construction (AFUDC) 
AFUDC is a non-cash adjustment to income with a corresponding charge to utility plant, 

which represents the cost of borrowed funds and a retum on equity funds devoted to plant under 
construction. AFUDC is recorded to the extent permitted by the Commission. 
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KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31,2002 and 2001 

(Dollars in thousands) 

Note 2 (continued) 

Environmental Costs 
Environmental expenditures that relate to current operations or provide a future benefit 

are expensed or capitalized as appropriate. Remediation costs that relate to an existing condition 
caused by past operations are accrued when it is probable that these costs will be incurred and 
can be reasonably estimated. There were no remediation costs accrued at December 31,2002 
and 2001. 

Asset Impairment 
Long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangible assets held and used by the Company 

are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying amount of the assets, on a separate entity basis, may not be recoverable. If the sum of 
the future cash flows expected to result from the use of the assets and their eventual disposition is 
less than the carrying amount of the assets, an impairment loss is recognized. Measurement of an 
impairment loss would be based on the fair value of the assets. A regulatory asset is charged to 
earnings if and when future recovery in rates of that asset is no longer probable. 

Reclassifications 
Certain reclassifications have been made to conform previously reported data to the 

current presentation. 

Note 3 - Utility Plant 

The components of utility plant at December 3 1 are as follows: 

Water plant 
Sources of supply 
Treatment and pumping 
Transmission and distribution 
Services, meters, and iire hydrants 
General structures and equipment 
Construction work in progress 

Less - accumulated depreciation 
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KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31,2002 and 2001 

(Dollars in thousands) 

Note 3 (continued) 

Depreciation expense amounted to $5,620 in 2002 and $5,374 in 2001. 

Note 4 -Preferred Stocks 

Preferred stock agreements have annual minimum sinking fund payments of $40 in 2003 
through 2007. The 7.9% series sinking fund payment of $40 is at the option of the Company. 

Note 5 - Long-Term Debt 

Maturities of long-term debt will amount to $0 in 2003 and 2004, $5,500 in 2005, $0 in 
2006 and $24,000 in 2007. 

The general mortgage bond indentures, as supplemented, contain clauses restricting the 
declaration of common stock dividends and other distributions on capital stock if common 
stockholder's equity falls below a specified amount. There were no restrictions at December 3 1 ,  
2002. 

The general mortgage bonds are issuable in series. No bonds senior to the general 
mortgage bonds may be issued so long as the general mortgage bonds are outstanding. The 
amount of bonds authorized is unlimited as long as long-term debt does not exceed 65% of 
capitalization. Long-term debt is secured by utility plant. 

The senior notes are unsecured and were issued to American Water Capital Corp. 
(AWCC) for the principal amount. AWCC provided the funding for this note by itself issuing 
senior notes to institutional investors at a price equal to the principal amount. 

Note 6 - Affiliate Borrowings 

During 2002, the Company maintained a line of credit through AWCC, an affiliate (see 
Note 12). AWCC has a 364-day $500 million revolving credit agreement with a group of 11 
domestic and international banks. No compensating balances are required under the agreement. 
AWCC also issues commercial paper, and the revolving credit agreement also supports these 
borrowings. 

At December 31,2002 and 2001, there were $14,649 and $24,668 of short-term 
borrowings outstanding, respectively. The weighted average annual interest rate on these 
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KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31,2002 and 2001 

(Dollars in thousands) 

Note 6 (continued) 

borrowings was 2.27% and 5.60% respectively. The unused line of credit at December 3 1,2002 
was $7,85 1. 

Note 7 - General Taxes 

Components of  general tax expense for the years presented in the statement of income are as 
follows: 

Gross receipts and kanchise 
Property and capital stock 
PayroU 

$2,201 $ 1 , 8 3 1  

Note 8 - Income Taxes 

Components of income tax expense for the years presented in the statement of income are 
as follows: 

State income taxes: 
C w e n t  
Deferred 

Non-current 

Federal income taxes: 
Current 
Deferred 

Non-current 
Amortization of deferred investment tax credits 
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KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31,2002 and 2001 

(Dollars in thousands) 

Note 8 (continued) 

A reconciliation of income tax expense at the statutory federal income tax rate to the 
actual income tax expense is as follows: 

2002 - 2001 
Income tax at statutory rate of35% $3,523 $4,100 
Increases (decreases) resulting from - 

State taxes, net of federal income taxes 558 645 
Flow through dEerences 10 72 
Amortization of investment tax credits (85) (85) 
0 ther, net 39 (29) 

Actual income tax expense $4,045 $4,703 

The following table provides the components of the net deferred tax liability at December 31 : 

2002 - 2001 - 
Deferred tax assets: 

Advances and contributions 
Deferred investment credits 
Deferred OPEB 
Other - Pension 
O ther 

Deferred tax liabilities: 
Utility plant, principally due to depreciation differences 
Uthty plant acquisition adustments 
Income taxes recoverable through rates 1,031 
Deferred security costs 687 
Deferred fmancial and customer service costs 222 

0 ther 4,148 

37,841 

Net deferred tax liability 

No valuation allowances were required on deferred tax assets at December 3 1,2002 and 
2001, as management believes it is more likely than not that these assets will be realized. 
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KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31,2002 and 2001 

(Dollars in thousands) 

Note 9 - Rate Matters 

As necessary, the Company applies to the Commission for changes in the rates charged 
for service. The rate increase request is based on the level of operating expenses and capital 
costs that are expected to be in effect when the rates become effective. The revenues requested 
are based on forecasted sales, operating expenses and investments for the test year selected by the 
Company. 

The Company has received approval from the Commission to increase its rates for service 
as follows: 

Effective Requested Annual Estimated Annual Estimated Revenue 
Dates Effect on Revenues Effect on Revenues Granted Realized in 2001 

On April 28,2000, the Company filed a rate application with the Commission, requesting 
$5.034 million in additional annual revenues that was subsequently revised to $4.685 million or 
1 1.69%. 

On December 12,2000, the Commission issued an Order adjusting its original Order 
dated November 27,2000. The adjusted order corrected errors in the initial ruling and reduced 
the allowed revenue increase from $2.51 8 million to $2.1 71 million to be effective for service 
rendered on and after November 27,2000. 

On May 9,2001, a final decision was issued which addressed appeals from 
reconsideration made by the Company and the State Attorney General. The final decision 
adjusted the authorized revenue increase from $2.171 to $2.568 million or 6.42% of total 
operating revenues. 

Note 10 - Employee Benefit Plans 

Employees' Stock Ownership Plan 

The Company participates in an Employees' Stock Ownership Plan sponsored by 
American, which provides for beneficial ownership of American common stock by all associates 
who are not included in a bargaining unit. Each participating associate can elect to contribute an 
amount that does not exceed 2% of their wages. In addition to the associate's participation, the 
Company makes a contribution equivalent to %% of each participant's qualified compensation, 
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KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31,2002 and 2001 

(Dollars in thousands) 

Note 10 (continued) 

and matches 100% of the contribution by each participant. The Company expensed contributions 
of $59 for 2002 and $62 for 2001 that it made to the plan. See Note 16 regarding the sale of 
American's common stock. 

Savings Plan for Employees 
The Company participates in a 401 (k) Savings Plan for Employees sponsored by 

American. All Associates can make contributions that are invested at their direction in one or 
more funds including a fund consisting entirely of American common stock. The Company 
matches 50% of the first 4% of each associate's wages contributed to the plan. The Company 
expensed matching contributions to the plan totaling $93 for 2002 and $85 for 2001. All of the 
Company's matching contributions are invested in the fund of American common stock. See 
Note 16 regarding the sale of American's common stock. 

Note 11 - Postretirement Benefits 

Pension Benejits 
The Company participates in a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan sponsored by 

American covering substantially all associates. Benefits under the plan are based on the 
associate's years of service and average annual compensation for those 60 consecutive months of 
employment, which yield the highest average. Pension cost of the Company is based on an 
allocation from American of the total cost related to the plan. Information regarding accumulated 
and projected beaefit obligations is not prepared at the subsidiary level. The Company's funding 
policy is to contribute at least the minimum amount required under the Employee Retirement 
Income Security Act of 1974. The Company made contributions to the plan of $216 in 2002 and 
no contributions in 2001. 

Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions 
The Company participates in an American plan that provides certain life insurance 

benefits for retired associates and certain health care benefits for retired associates and their 
dependents. Substantially all associates may become eligible for these benefits if they reach 
retirement age while still working for the Company. Retirees and their dependents under age 65 
are covered by a point-of-service managed care plan that requires co-payments or an HMO. 
Associates who elect to retire prior to attaining age 65 are generally required to make 
contributions towards their medical coverage until attaining age 65. Retirees and their 
dependents age 65 and over are covered by a Medicare supplement plan. Costs of the Company 
are based on an allocation from American of the total cost related to the plan. 
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KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31,2002 and 2001 

(Dollars in thousands) 

Note I1 (continued) 

Information regarding accumulated and projected benefit obligations is not prepared at 
the subsidiary level. The Company made contributions to trust funds established for these 
postretirement benefits of $560 in 2002 and $561 in 2001. The Company's policy is to fund 
postretirement benefits costs accrued. 

Note 12 - Related Party Transactions 

American Water Works Service Company, Inc. (AWWS), an affiliate, provides certain 
management services to the Company (administration, accounting, data processing, engineering, 
etc.) and other operating water companies in the American Water Works System on an at-cost, 
not-for-profit basis in accordance with a management and service agreement. Purchases of such 
services by the Company were accounted for as follows: 

Included in operation and maintenance expense 
as a charge against income $2,532 $1,535 

Capitalized in various balance sheet accounts 654 765 

$3,186 $2,300 

The Company provided workspace and information system support for associates of the 
Southeast Region of AWWS. Charges for direct costs and indirect overhead costs associated 
with these associates are billed to AWWS on an at-cost, not for profit basis, which amounted to 
$15 in 2002 and $43 in 2001. At December 3 1,2002, there was no outstanding receivable from 
this affiliate for these services. 

Some of the Company's associates have performed services at cost to AWWS relating to 
the establishment by American of consolidated customer and shared administrative service 
centers. The total amount of these services was $148 in 2002 and $217 in 2001. At 
December 3 1,2002, net amounts receivable from this affiliate for these services were $47. 

The Company has three operating agreements with American Water Services, Inc. 
(AWS), an affiliate, for the lease of granular activated carbon at one of the Company's water 
treatment plants. The agreements provide for AWS to regenerate the spent material and return it 
to the water treatment plant where it originated. Under the terms of the agreements, AWS will 
provide carbon for a period of thirty-six months beginning in each of March 1999,2000, and 
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KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
Notes to Financia1 Statements 
December 31,2002 and 2001 

(Dollars in thousands) 

Note 12 (continued) 

2001. The carbon is scheduled for replacement at thirty-six month intervals and is warranted to 
perform to specific standards during that period. The Company paid $87 in 2002 and $82 in 
2001 to AWS under these agreements. 

The Company maintains a line of credit through AWCC, an affiliate. The company paid 
AWCC fees of $61 in 2002 and $47 in 2001, preliminary costs of long-term financings of $3 in 
2002 and $1 17 in 2001 and interest on borrowings of $252 in 2002 and $486 in 2001. 

Note 13 - Fair Values of Financial Instruments 

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Company in estimating its fair 
value disclosures for financial instruments: 

Current assets and current liabilities: The carrying amount reported in the balance sheet 
for current assets and current liabilities approximates their fair value. 

Preferred stocks with mandatory redemption requirements and long-term debt: The fair 
values of the Company's preferred stocks with mandatory redemption requirements and long- 
term debt are estimated using discounted cash flow analyses based on the Company's current 
incremental financing rates for similar types of securities. 

The canying amounts arid fair values of the Company's financial instruments at 
December 31 are as follows: 

2002 2001 
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair 
Amount Value Amount Value 

Preferred stock with mandatory 
redemption requirements $ 5,340 $ 5,287 % 5,380 $ 5,805 

Long-term debt, including current 
maturities 68,500 69,256 57,500 55,961 

Note 14 - Operating Leases 

The Company has entered into operating leases involving certain facilities and 
equipment. Rental expenses under operating leases were $176 in 2002 and $134 in 2001. The 
operating leases for their equipment expire over the next six years. 
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KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31,2002 and 2001 

(Dollars in thousands) 

Note 14 (continued) 

At December 31,2002, the minimum annual future rental commitments under operating 
leases that have initial or remaining non-cancellable lease terms in excess of one year are $120 in 
2004, $81 in 2005, $38 in 2006 and $22 in 2007. 

Note 15 - Commitments and Contingencies 

The Company's construction program for 2003 is estimated to cost approximately 
$13,123. Commitments have been made in connection with certain projects included in this 
program. 

In connection with the merger of American with RWE Aktiengesellschaft (RWE, see 
Note 16), the Company is subject to an order from the Commission that requires that no rate 
filings will be submitted until March 2004. 

The Company is routinely involved in legal actions. In the opinion of management, none 
of these matters will have a material adverse effect, if any, on the financial position or results of 
operations of the Company. 

Note 16 - Subsequent Event - Merger with RWE Aktiengesellschaft 

On September 16, 2001, American entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the 
Agreement) with RWE and Thames Water Aqua Holdings GmbH (Thames), which is RWE's 
holding company for its global water business, to merge with a subsidiary of RWE and become a 
wholly owned indirect subsidiary of RWE. The transaction was approved at a special meeting of 
the stockholders of American on January 17, 2002. On January 10, 2003, Apollo Acquisition 
Company, a Delaware corporation, merged (the Merger) with and into American, pursuant to the 
Agreement, with American surviving the Merger. Pursuant to the Agreement, each issued and 
outstanding share of common stock, par value $1.25 per share, of American has been canceled 
and converted into the right to receive $46.00 in cash without interest, plus a stub period 
dividend of $0.2153333 per share. As a result of the Merger, American became a wholly owned 
subsidiary of Thames Water Aqua US Holdings, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of Thames. 
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